HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
April 5, 2005
1:46 p. m

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Meyer called the House Finance Conmttee neeting to
order at 1:46:06 PM

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representative Eric Croft
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Jim Holm

Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative M ke Kelly
Representative Carl Mses

Representati ve Bruce Weyhrauch

VEMBERS ABSENT

None
ALSO PRESENT

Representative John Coghill; Sally Saddler, Legislative
Li ai son, Departnment of Community and Econom c Devel opnent;
Eddy Jeans, Director, Education Support Services, Departnent
of Education and Early Devel opnent; Kaci Schroeder, Staff,
House Community and Regional Affairs; Suzanne Cunni ngham
Staff, Co-Chair Meyer; Representative Nancy Dahl strom Kelly
Huber, Staff, Representative Nancy Dahl strom Major GCeneral
Craig Canpbell, Comm ssioner, MIlitary and Veterans Affairs;

Representative Jay Ranras; Jane W Pi er son, Staff,
Representative Jay Ranras; Sergeant Tim Birt, Juneau,
Al aska State Troopers; Linda Gohl, Alaska Comm ssion on
Agi ng

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Wanetta  Ayers, Executive Director, Sout hwest Al aska
Muni ci pal Conference; Jason Carroll, Chair, Mt Su Resource &
Conservation District (RC&); Rob Well, Executive Director,
Mat Su Resource Conservation & Devel opnent Council; Marlena
Adans, Wasilla; Kurt Kornchuck, Anchorage Police Departnent

SUMVARY

House Fi nance Committee 1 04/05/05 1:46 P. M



HB 16

HB 119

HB 156

HB 122

HB 149

HB 201

"An Act relating to funding for school districts
operating secondary school boarding prograns and
to funding for school districts from which
boarding students come; and providing for an
effective date."

HB 16 was REPORTED out of Conmmttee with a "do
pass"” recomendation and with fiscal inpact note
#1 by the Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent .

"An Act extending the termnation date of the
Al aska regional econom c assistance program and
providing for an effective date."

CSHB 119 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Conmttee with
a "do pass" recommendation and with two new fi scal
i npact notes by the House Finance Committee.

"An Act relating to the nmenbership of the Al aska
Comm ssion on Aging; and providing for an
effective date."

CSHB (HES) 156 was REPORTED out of Conmittee with
a "do pass" recommendation and with fiscal inpact
note #1 by the Departnent of Health and Soci al
Servi ces.

"An Act relating to paynent of premuns for
Servi cenenbers' Goup Life Insurance on behalf of
menbers of the Al aska National Guard deployed to a
conbat zone; and providing for an effective date."

HB 122 was heard and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

"An Act relating to further regulation of the
sal e, possessi on, and delivery of certain
chem cals and precursors used in the manufacture
of net hanphetam ne. "

CSHB 149 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Conmttee with
a "do pass” recommendation and wth four
previously published fiscal notes: zero note #1
COR, zero note #2 LAW indeterm nate note #3 DOA
i ndeterm nate note #4 DOC, and with a new fiscal
i npact note by CED.

"An Act relating to an application for a pernmanent
fund dividend for a nenber of the armed forces of
the United States serving on active duty outside
of the state; and providing for an effective
date."

House Fi nance Committee 2 04/05/05 1:46 P. M



HB 201 was post poned.
1:46: 15 PM

HOUSE BI LL NO._ 119

"An Act extending the term nation date of the Al aska
regi onal econom c assi stance program and providing for
an effective date."

KACI SCHROEDER, STAFF, HOUSE COVMUNI TY AND REG ONAL AFFAI RS,
expl ained the bill

1: 48: 50 PM

WANETTA AYERS, EXECUTIVE D RECTOR, SW ALASKA MJNI Cl PAL
CONFERENCE, spoke in favor of HB 119. She explained the
benefits of the program and how funds are generated. She
related the funding fornula used for the various tiers and
expl ai ned how reauthorization is a distraction from econom c
devel opnent . She spoke of past funding nechanisns, AlDA
receipts, a balanced long-term fiscal plan, and a well-
funded regional devel opnent pl an.

1: 54: 31 PM

JASON CARROLL, CHAIR, KENAI PEN NSULA ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT
DI STRI CT, spoke of difficulties and how nuch easier it wll
be if the date is extended.

ROB VELL, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, MATSU RESOURCE CONSERVATI ON &
DEVELOPMENT COUNCI L, read a statenent (copy on file.)

Co-Chair Meyer cl osed public testinony.
1:56: 52 PM

SALLY SADDLER, LEQ SLATIVE LI Al SON, DEPARTMENT OF COVMUNI TY
AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, in response to a question from Co-
Chair Meyer, spoke about the new fiscal note.

Representative Kelly asked about the $650, 000 amount and how
it is funded.

Ms. Saddler explained that it was intended to be funded by
busi ness |icenses, but now is funded by the general fund.
Now there are two fiscal notes; one takes AlIDA receipts, and
one transfers t hose receipts to t he di vi si on.
Representative Kelly asked if it is funded by AlIDA receipts.
Ms. Saddler said it is.

2:01: 02 PM

House Fi nance Committee 3 04/05/05 1:46 P. M



Represent ati ve Weyhrauch MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent 1:

Page 1, line 6
Del ete “2013”
| nsert “2010”

Vice-Chair Stoltze OBIJECTED

Co-Chair Chenault spoke against the 2013 date and in favor
of the 2010 date.

Vice-Chair Stoltze WTHDREW his OBJECTI ON. There being NO
OBJECTI ON, Anmendnent 1 was adopt ed.

Representative Foster MOVED to report CSHB 119 (FIN) out of
Comm ttee wth i ndi vi dual reconmendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

CSHB 119 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Conmittee with a "do
pass" recommendation and with two new fiscal inpact notes by
t he House Fi nance Conm ttee.

2: 03:45 PM

HOUSE BILL NO 16

"An Act relating to funding for school districts
operating secondary school boarding prograns and to
funding for school districts from which boarding
students cone; and providing for an effective date."

EDDY JEANS, DI RECTOR, EDUCATI ON SUPPORT SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT
OF EDUCATI ON AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT, spoke of Resol ution 0125
fromthe state Board of Education in support of HB 16. He
reported on the nunber of small boarding schools and their
enrollment. He related an exanple from Nenana regardi ng the
hol d- harmm ess provision, which is a stopgap while the pilot
programis in place.

Vice-Chair Stoltze asked how many schools are involved. M.
Jeans responded that there are three.

Represent ati ve Hawker questioned the need for a requirenent
that all students go to a boarding school. He wondered
about the overriding policy that fewer than 10 students are
not vi abl e. M. Jeans responded that he does not want to
see communities left out.

2:10: 21 PM

Co-Chair Chenault asked how long before it is no longer a
pil ot program M. Jeans reported that the program is not
in effect right now. The three schools are currently

House Fi nance Committee 4 04/05/05 1:46 P. M



generating resources to support thenselves. The bill allows
DOE time to gather information about how to deal wth
boar di ng school s.

Representative Kelly voiced a concern about going below 10
st udents. He said he supports the boarding school concept
and the test period, but not beyond that. He suggested that
boardi ng schools need to have high caliber discipline plans

like in Galena. He referred to page 2, line 4, and said he
wants to have parents invol ved. He stated opposition to
line 2.

M. Jeans related that the per-pupil stipend mrrors a

current program already in place regarding airfare.
Stipends on the spreadsheet that support the fiscal notes
are the sane as currently in place. They do not add up to
100 percent. Representative Kelly suggested that parents
pay all of the stipend.

2:17: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHN COGHI LL, sponsor of HB 16, agreed that
t he governnent should not hold the costs. Under the bill
the stipend would cover about 1/3 of the costs. He agreed
that the benefit to Alaska is great. He requested support
for the bill

Representative Joule spoke of a personal experience wth
boardi ng schools and his famly. He said he is very pl eased
to see this bill, but noted that it is not a broad enough
| ook. He suggested that the state step up to the plate to
hel p. He spoke of regional |earning centers and how they
contribute to conmunities.

2:24: 23 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze related a personal story about a famly
growi ng up poor. He asked if students could work off their
sti pends. M. Jeans replied that DOE does not regulate
tuition anmounts. Nenana has scholarships to help famlies.

Representative Coghill added that famlies could work for
the tuition in Nenana.

Representative Hawker pointed out that taking the $1.2
mllion fiscal note and dividing it by 231 students arrives
at a per student cost of $5,311. He noted that the |anguage
that says the stipend should be determ ned by the depart nent
on a regional basis is troublesone. He suggested that it be
nore specific. M. Jeans responded that the boardi ng honme
program has been in regulation since 1985, and costs have
remai ned at about $185,000 for five years. He opined that
the departnment has not abused the stipend. M. Jeans
explained that there is statutory authority to operate this

House Fi nance Committee 5 04/05/05 1:46 P. M



program  Representative Hawker read from the statute about
who is eligible to claim costs incurred from the per pupi
sti pend. He interpreted it to allow anyone to run their
program as they want.

2:31:10 PM

Representative Coghill replied that was not the intention
nor the practice of the departnent. He said he was open to
suggesti ons.

Representati ve Foster commended the Rasnmuson Foundation for
the grant. M. Jeans replied that he did not know the
dol lar anpbunt of the grant, but it acconpanied a business
pl an.

Representati ve Wyhrauch asked what the State Board of
Education is doing to devel op policies for boardi ng school s.
M. Jeans said the board has not devel oped policies, but
does support this pilot program Al three of these schoo
districts started the prograns on their own, and the board
passed a resolution and found them worthy of a second | ook.
He expl ai ned the eval uation system

2:35: 51 PM

Representative Hawker asked if there is a defined public
program M. Jeans replied only the three boarding school s
that are currently operating are eligible: Galena, Nenana,
and Bet hel . Representati ve Hawker observed that there is
not hing that shows what will be had because of this program
He i nquired about the pilot project.

Representative Coghill replied that the purpose of the pilot
project is to evaluate whether to participate in boarding
school progranms at this |Ilevel. Student access, career
noves, and No Child Left Behind Standards will be used to
eval uate success. Representative Hawker spoke agai nst open-
ended commtnents. He asked for accountability and a
definition of a work product. He concluded that funding is
i nportant, but it needs m ssions and neasures.

2:40: 47 PM

Representative Coghill explained there are ways to neasure
progress. He noted that this is part of the question, “Can
we do it better?”

Vice-Chair Stoltze pointed out that that charter schools
need to display credibility, also. M ssions and neasures
are already in place. Representative Coghill explained that
he did not nmean to di sparage charter school s.

2:45: 31 PM

House Fi nance Committee 6 04/05/05 1:46 P. M



Co- Chair Meyer concluded that there would be sone
nmeasurenents of success, such as benchmark exans.

Represent ati ve Weyhrauch W THDREW Anendnent 1.
Represent ati ve Weyhrauch MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent 2:

Page 2, line 17
Del ete “2010”
| nsert “2006”

Co- Chair Meyer OBJECTED for the purpose of discussion.

Representati ve Wyhrauch explained that Anmendnent 2 would
provi de an earlier sunset date for the |egislation.

Representative Coghill stated that he would like to see a
five-year period before a review He estimated that there
woul d be discussions during the entire five years.

Representative Joule point out that budget subcommttees
raise the issue of how prograns are doing every year. He
felt that the current process would allow sufficient review.
He spoke agai nst the anmendnent.

2:49: 50 PM

Co-Chair Meyer questioned if the departnent would be able to
provide a report in 2010 regarding school performance. M.
Jeans stated that it would be their intent to provide the
State Board of Education a report detailing performance
statistics on a yearly basis.

Represent ati ve Weyhrauch W THDREW Anendnent 2.

Co- Chair Meyer W THDREW hi s OBJECTI ON

Represent ati ve Hawker maintai ned an objection to the idea in
t he amendnent. He reiterated that the there are no clear
expectations outlined in regards to the pilot program He
expressed concern with the lack of accountability.

Represent ati ve Hawker said he woul d not object to noving the
bill out today.

2:52: 23 PM

Co-Chair Meyer reiterated that there would be neans and
standards to nmeasure the return of the prograns.

Representati ve Holm noted t hat t here are severa
i nt angi bl es.

House Fi nance Committee 7 04/05/05 1:46 P. M



Co- Chair Meyer agreed.
2:53:31 PM

Representative Kelly agreed with Representative Hawker about
accountability. He stressed that schools need to
denonstrate what they are replacing and that the schools are
per form ng. He maintained that there should be high
performance neasures in terns of graduation rates and GPA
He stressed there should be better returns than “average”.

Co-Chair Meyer agreed that there is concern that the state’s
noney be well spent.

2:55: 35 PM

Representati ve Coghi I | agr eed wth t he need for
accountability. Communities have reached into their pockets
to go the extra mles. Students and parents have nade
sacrifices. He urged the Conmittee to step up to support
boar di ng school s. Boar di ng school s have t he sane
requi renents as other schools. He questioned why boarding
school s shoul d have to out perform ot her schools.

Representative Kelly <clarified that there should be a
measur ement of inprovenent fromthe | ocal school the student
| eft behi nd.

2:58: 25 PM

Representative Hawker clarified that he is not asking
boardi ng schools to outperformother schools. He reiterated
t he need have perfornance neasures.

Representative Foster MOVED to report HB 16 out of Conmttee
wi th individual recommendations and with the acconpanying
fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

HB 16 was REPORTED out of Commttee with a "do pass”
recoomendation and with a fiscal inpact note #1 by the
Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent.

3:01: 03 PM

HOUSE BILL NO. 156

"An Act relating to the mnmenbership of the Al aska
Comm ssion on Aging; and providing for an effective
date."

Represent ati ve Hol m spoke in support of HB 156. He provided
the history of the bill and urged the commttee’s support.

House Fi nance Committee 8 04/05/05 1:46 P. M



Co- Chair Chenault asked if the comm ssion would change from
7 to 8 nenbers. Representative Holmsaid yes.

Co-Chair Meyer MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent 1:

Page 2, line 6

Del ete Section 2

Renunber the remai ning sections accordi ngly.
Representatives Stoltze and Hol m OBJECTED.

3:05:12 PM

SUZANNE CUNNI NGHAM  STAFF, CO CHAIR MEYER, explained that
the way the statutes are witten the Comm ssioner of
Adm ni stration does not have the ability to vote on nmatters
before the comm ssion. HB 156 would renove the Conm ssioner
of Adm nistration, and a person who provi des senior services
and is a recipient of a grant awarded under the senior grant
programis added to the conm ssion. This person would have
the ability to vote on matters before the comm ssion. Under
ASA7. 45. 240, power, duti es, and limtations of t he
Comm ssion on Aging, there is sone confusion about the way
the statute is witten, and Anendnent 2 would correct this.

Representative Holmreferred to a letter fromthe Comm ssion
on Aging dated March 3 regarding voting on grants. He
agreed that there mght be problens with policies and grant
reci pients. He requested conmments from Li nda Gohl

3:08: 44 PM

LI NDA GOHL, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA COW SSI ON ON AG NG
agreed that the statute is msleading because of who
approves grants. She noted that conm ssion nenbers are not
involved in the award process. If there were a potential
conflict of interest, the chair would ask that the nenber
abst ai n.

Representative Hol m asked Ms. Gohl if there is a conflict of
interest. She opined that there is no conflict of interest.

Ms. Cunningham noted a concern about a senior services

provider and departnmental conflicts. Representative Holm
responded that all conm ssions and boards have the sane
potential conflict of interest. It is desirous to have

know edgeabl e peopl e on the board.

Co- Chair Meyer asked if Ms. Gohl agreed with the renoval of
Amendnent 1. She said yes.

Co- Chair Meyer W THDREW Anendnent 1

House Fi nance Committee 9 04/05/05 1:46 P. M



3:13: 58 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze MOVED to report CSHB 156 (HES) out of
Committee with the acconpanying fiscal note. There being NO
OBJECTIQN, it was so ordered.

CSHB (HES) 156 was REPORTED out of Conmittee with a "do
pass" recommendation and with fiscal inpact note #1 by the
Departnent of Health and Social Services.

3:14: 44 PM

HOUSE BI LL NO. 122

"An  Act relating to paynent of prem uns for
Servi cenenbers’ Goup Life Insurance on behalf of
menbers of the Alaska National GGuard deployed to a
conbat zone; and providing for an effective date."

KELLY  HUBER, STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE = NANCY DAHLSTROM
explained that HB 122 allows mlitary nmen and wonen in
foreign countries in conbat zone to defer paynents for
various contracts and bills.

Representative Holm asked why there is a zero note on the
education | oans portion. Ms. Huber replied that the |oans
are deferred and will still have to be paid in full.

3:20: 15 PM

Co- Chair Meyer Moved to ADOPT Anendnent 1:
Page 2, lines 18 - 19:

Delete "; a termnation under this paragraph does not
remove the liability for any anount™
Insert ", and the paynent of any anounts”

Page 3, line 27, follow ng "Bank":
Insert ", except for a |loan made by the Al aska Housing
Fi nance Corporation”

Vice-Chair Stoltze OBIJECTED

Ms. Huber explained that the sponsor’s intent is to exenpt
AHFC.

In response to a question by Vice-Chair Stoltze, M. Huber
replied that it helps so famlies are not displaced or
evi ct ed.

Vice-Chair Stoltze WTHDREW his objection to adopt Anendnent
1. There being NO OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

3:23: 05 PM

House Fi nance Committee 10 04/ 05/ 05 1:46 P. M



Represent ati ve Weyhrauch MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent 2:

Page 1, line 7
Del ete Section 1

Co- Chai r Meyer OBJECTED for di scussi on pur poses.
Representative Weyhrauch expl ained that Section 1 could be
witten in a letter of intent.

Representative Croft noted that it is a tenmporary |aw and
the section does no harm

Co- Chair Meyer agr eed wth Representati ve Croft.
Representative Weyhrauch asked if making an exception for
the National Guard is appropriate.

REPRESENTATI VE NANCY DAHLSTROM requested that the statenent
stay in the bill because it reflects how the |egislature
feel s about the National Guard.

Co-Chair Meyer asked Representative Foster if there is a set
pattern for including such sections. Representati ve Foster
replied that there is no set pattern.

Represent ati ve Weyhrauch W THDREW Anendnent 2.

3:25: 34 PM

Represent ati ve Weyhrauch MOVED to adopt Amendnent 3:

Page 2, line 9
Del ete Section 2

Vice-Chair Stoltze OBIJECTED

Represent ati ve Weyhrauch expl ai ned that the original section
all owed reinbursenent simlar to a life insurance program
Ms. Huber explained that National Guardsnen already have
access to life insurance prem uns. She clarified that
Section 2 was added as areas for relief which DWA w shed to
addr ess, and was based on what ot her states do.
Representati ve Weyhrauch replied that he likes the origina
bill and has problems with Section 2 because it puts a
burden on sone and is not defined. He pointed out that the
National Guard is a volunteer service. He referred to costs
inposed on notor vehicle |leasing conpanies, wreless
t el ephone services, higher education institutions, heating
fuel conpanies, state |oans, and the Departnent of Fish and
Game. He opined this goes beyond the original intent of the
bill. It is too broad and has uni ntended consequences.

3:29:47 PM

House Fi nance Committee 11 04/ 05/ 05 1:46 P. M



Ms. Huber related that the bill developed into one which
provides nore relief for guardsnen than just life insurance.
There have been no conplaints about these new itens. Al

the bill does is termnate a contract; it does not allow
soneone out of naking paynents. The University of Al aska
already has this in policy. Public utilities provisions
such as this one are found in legislation in other states to
prevent famly hardships. The guardsman will still have to
pay their bills, but with no penalties charged. The
Department of Fish and Gane will only have to re-issue the
actual license. Defernents of student |oans are already in
pl ace. This bill is not trying to create a hardship on

private conpani es.

Representative Hawker MWNED to ADOPT an anendnent to
Amendnent 3, to delete Section 2 through page 3, line 27.
He voiced concerns about Section 2 and suggested that
| egi slative |l egal take a look at it.

Representative Dahlstrom related that she is confortable
with the bill as it is because it has been a matter of
public record and no opposition has been voi ced.

3:36: 23 PM

Representative Croft suggested that the goals of Section 2
are appropri ate.

Vice-Chair Stoltze commented on the scope of the bill
Co- Chair Meyer suggested hol di ng Anendnent 3.
Represent ati ve Weyhrauch W THDREW Anendnent 3.

Representative Foster thanked the sponsor of the bill. He
suggested that the public would support this bill. He asked
how many woul d be inpacted by the bill

MAJOR GENERAL CRAIG CAWMPBELL, COW SSIONER, M LITARY AND
VETERANS AFFAI RS, rel ated the nunbers of guardsnen overseas,
many who are earning significantly less than they were in
the private sector. There are 125 soldiers fromthe Third
Battalion in Ilraq, 27 soldiers in Haiti, 70 in Afghanistan

150 deployed from the 176 Wng, plus many from the rescue
squad, for a total of 500 out of 4,000 National GCuard
overseas this year.

3:43: 43 PM

Represent ati ve Weyhrauch declined to nove Amendnent 4.

Co-Chair Meyer noted that a new fiscal note would be witten
by the Departnent of Fish and Gane.

House Fi nance Committee 12 04/ 05/ 05 1:46 P. M



HB 122 was HELD in commttee for further consideration.

HOUSE BI LL NO. 149

"An Act relating to further regulation of the sale,
possession, and delivery of certain chemcals and
precursors used in the manufacture of nethanphetam ne."

3:45: 42 PM

Co-Chair Chenault MOVED to ADOPT the new CS for HB 149,
| abel ed 24-LS0596\U, Luckhaupt, 3/31/05. There being NO
OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

REPRESENTATI VE JAY RAMRAS, sponsor, nentioned that there is
an indetermnate fiscal note related to costs by the Public
Def ender Agency. He noted that the governor is supportive
of this bill. He pointed out that the bill deals wth
deterrents, but also attenpts to cut down on the supply of
met hanphet am nes. He spoke of areas in Alaska with profound
problenms such as Barrow, the MitSu Valley, North Pole,
out side of Fairbanks, and other rural areas. He expl ai ned
sone of the problens associated wth nethanphetam nes. He
noted that the bill also addresses the abuse of steroids.

Vice-Chair Stoltze talked about enhanced protection and
first responders.

JANE W PIERSON, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE JAY RAMRAS, rel ated
that the bill went before legislative legal, which said
enhancenment is not a new elenent of the crine. Reckl ess
endangernent is already a crine.

3:54:31 PM

Representative Ranras clarified that pseudo ephedrine is a
necessary ingredient of nethanphetam ne. He noted that it
is the best substance to cook the agent wth.

TI M BI RT, SERGEANT, JUNEAU, STATE TROOPERS, spoke in support
of the Ilegislation. He explained that wthout pseudo
ephedrine there is no nmethanphetam ne. He observed that
there is a legitinate use for pseudo ephedrine. He spoke to
t he benchmark of products. Six grans would allow the use
suggested by the manufacturer. For every $100 put into the
cost of manuf act uri ng, there is a $1,000 return.
Met hanphet am ne is extrenely addictive. He spoke in support
of provisions requiring registration by consuners. He
stated that there is a spectrumon retail sales, where sone
manuf acturers provide little or no records sales. O her
manuf acturers attenpt to control products from theft or ask
for nanmes and addresses for suspicious sales.

4:01:13 PM

House Fi nance Committee 13 04/ 05/ 05 1:46 P. M



In response to a question by Vice-Chair Stoltze, Sergeant
Birt noted that there are a variety of ways of transmtting
information regarding sales of pseudo ephedrine at this
poi nt .

Co- Chair Chenault observed that buyers could be required to
sign as they currently do for prescription drugs. He asked
how t he state would access the information.

Sergeant Birt responded that troopers would create a worKking
relationship with retailers. The intent would be to not
adversely inpact the retailers or create burdens.

4:04:50 PM

Co-Chair Chenaul t noted the delicate nature of the
i nformation. He questioned if there needs to be statute
changes to allow access to confidential nmaterial. He

expressed concern with the indetermnate fiscal notes. He
poi nted out that he didn't know if there would be 200 or 2
nore arrests with the legislation. He acknow edged the need
for the legislation, but stressed that the Commttee nust
| ook at the ability to finance the | aw

4:07:32 PM

Representati ve Ranras enphasi zed that the intent is to choke
the supply and make it nore difficult to obtain. He
estimated that there could be a positive affect on |aw
enforcenent if nethanphetam ne | aboratories were shut down.

4:08:49 PM

Representative Hawker referred to nine and six tab limts
and questioned how many tablets nmake up nine grans.
Sergeant Birt stated that three hundred tablets nmake up nine
grams. Every unit of pseudo ephedrine equals 5.75 product
pr oduced.

Representati ve Hawker discussed dosages in an attenpt to
ascertain if the paraneters were appropriate. He noted that
a 30-mlligram tablet would be reduced to 75 percent or 24
mlligrams of nethanphetam ne. He concl uded that one-tenth
of a gramwould be a street dose of nethanphetam ne.

Representative Hawker asked if it would be an inpedinent to
require simlar procedures for other prescription drugs.

Sgt. Birt responded that it would not.
4:14:18 PM

House Fi nance Committee 14 04/ 05/ 05 1:46 P. M



Represent ati ve Hawker suggested that there would be privacy
I ssues. He expressed a concern that the right to privacy
not be over-stepped.

Representative Holm expressed concern about the right to

war r ant . He noted that other information couldn’'t be
obtained with out court interaction. The |egislation would
allow the state to obtain the information at will, and he

questioned if it would violate the right to privacy.
Representative Hol m questioned if nine grans was too great
an anount. He asked why anyone would need nore than 30
tabl et s.

4:17:13 PM

Representative Foster noted that he lives in rural areas in
the sumer and that he stocks up on all his supplies.

Representati ve Weyhrauch stressed that it is a national and
rural problemin all areas of the nation. He enphasized the
severity of the problem of pseudo ephedrine use.

MARLENA ADAMS, WASILLA, (via teleconference) testified in
support of the legislation. She noted that she was addicted

to met hanphetam ne, which alnost cost her life. She was
burned on 47 percent of her body as a result of an expl osion
resulting from nethanphetam ne use. She enphasi zed that

users becone vicious and paranoid. She spoke in support of
stronger limtations and penalties.

KURT KORNCHUCK, ANCHORAGE POLI CE DEPARTMENT, (via
tel econference) testified in support of the legislation. He
noted that simlar legislation in California has been very
successful . He did not think the neasure was drastic in
conparison to the problem He recounted instances relating
t o net hanphetam ne use in Anchorage. He agreed with a six-
gramlimt.

4:29:10 PM

Representative Hawker stressed the intent to protect the
confidentiality of records so that they do not fall prey to
mar ket i ng.

Represent ati ve Hawker MOVED t o ADOPT Conceptual Anendnent 1:

Page 9, lines 19 and 20:

After “dispensed.” Delete all material and insert the
fol | ow ng:

“Upon the request, the Departnent of Public Safety and
ot her law enforcenent officers shall have access to the
| og. The log may be used for | aw enforcenent purposes,

House Fi nance Committee 15 04/ 05/ 05 1:46 P. M



but is otherwi se confidential and not subject to public
di scl osure under AS 40.25.100 - 40. 25. 220.”

Representative Hawker explained that confidentiality of a
records log, kept by the retailer, should be nmaintained with
a confidentiality standard in keeping with that used by
paranedi cal conpanies, but should not require a warrant
situation for |aw enforcenent.

Representative Ranras expressed concern that retailers
should not be subject to a crine if they do not keep up
their |1 ogs adequately. He pointed out that there could be a
variety of areas where pseudo ephedrine is sold, such as
hotel gift shops.

Representative Hawker responded that |ess sophisticated
sellers would need to ask the vast mgjority of innocent
Al askans to register their driver’'s licenses and other
information. He brought up the issue of identity theft and
asked for a | egal opinion.

4:34: 54 PM

Representative Ranras suggested that Representative Hawker
| ook on page 9, line 8, where a conceptual anendnent could
be inserted to address confidentiality concerns.

Representative Hawker pointed out that he referred to the
whol esal er’ s portion.

Ms. Carpenetti offered to help Representative Hawker wth
t he | anguage for Conceptual Anendnent 1.

There being NO OBJECTIQON, Conceptual Anendnent 1 was
ADOPTED.

Co-Chair Meyer asked if there should be a penalty if the
provision is not net.

Representati ve Hawker affirned, but enphasized that he would
| eave it up to the Departnent of Law.

Co-Chair Meyer agreed with the intent of the anendnent.

Representative Foster MOVED to report CSHB 149 (FIN) out of
Commttee with the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being
NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

CSHB 149 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Committee with a "do
pass" recommendation and wth four previously published
fiscal notes: zero note #1 COR zero note #2 LAW
indetermnate note #3 DOA, indeterm nate note #4 DOC, and
with a new fiscal inpact note by CED

House Fi nance Committee 16 04/ 05/ 05 1:46 P. M



[ HB 201 was post poned. ]
ADJ OQURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 4:37 PM

House Fi nance Committee 17 04/ 05/ 05 1:46 P. M



